ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 11, 2003
8:00 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 15

"An Act relating to establishing the Alaska No-Call List, a data
base of residential telephone custonmers who do not wsh to
receive telephonic solicitations; providing that the data base
be compiled at no cost to the custoners; requiring paid
tel ephonic sellers to purchase the data base; requiring
tel ephonic sellers to identify thenselves; requiring telephonic
solicitors who are otherwise exenpt from registration as
tel ephonic solicitors to file with the Departnent of Law and
purchase the data base; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Per sonnel Board

Paul ette Sinpson - Dougl as
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska Public O fices Conmm ssion

Larry Wod - Eagle R ver

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 11, 2003



EXECUTI VE ORDER 108 - TRANSFER FUNCTI ONS TO DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
& SOCI AL SERVI CES

- EXECUTI VE ORDER ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 158

"An Act elimnating the longevity bonus program and making
related conformng changes; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 157

"An Act elimnating the A aska Public Ofices Conm ssion;
transferring canpaign, public official, and |obbying financial
di scl osure record-keeping duties to the division of elections;
relating to reports, sunmmari es, and docunents regarding
canpaign, public official, and |obbying financial disclosure;
providing for enforcenent by the Departnent of Law, nmaking
conform ng statutory anmendnments; and providing for an effective
date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 161

"An Act allow ng expenses of the correctional industries program
that may be financed from the correctional industries fund to
i nclude the salaries and benefits of state enpl oyees."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4
Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Al aska relating to the duration of a regular session.
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 15

SHORT TI TLE: TELEMARKETERS NO- CALL LI STS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
01/ 21/ 03 0035 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)
01/ 21/ 03 0035 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 11, 2003



REFERRALS

01/21/03 0035 (H) L&C, STA, FIN

01/ 29/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 29/ 03 (H) <Bi || Post poned>

02/ 07/ 03 0153 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : CHENAULT

02/ 07/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 07/ 03 (H) Moved CSHB 15(L&C) Qut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 10/ 03 0166 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 3DP 4AM

02/ 10/ 03 0166 (H) DP: CRAWORD, ROKEBERG,
ANDERSON,;

02/ 10/ 03 0166 (H) AM LYNN, GATTO, GUTTENBERG
DAHLSTROM

02/ 10/ 03 0167 (H) FN1: ZERQ( CED)

02/ 10/ 03 0167 (H) FN2: (LAW

02/ 10/ 03 0167 (H) REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 10/ 03 0172 (H) COSPONSOR( S) :  CRAWORD

02/ 18/ 03 0231 (H) COSPONSOR( S) :  KERTTULA

02/ 18/ 03 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 18/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 03 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 25/ 03 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 25/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 05/ 03 0450 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : CROFT

03/11/03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 158

SHORT TI TLE: ELI M NATI NG LONGEVI TY BONUS PROGRAM
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0427 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0427 (H STA, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0428 (H FN1: (ADV

03/ 05/ 03 0428 (H GOVERNOR' S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 05/ 03 0428 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 11/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 15.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 11, 2003



JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 15.

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AkPIRG

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified briefly during hearing on HB 15.

MARI E DARLI N

AARP Capital Gty Task Force

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 15.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as cosponsor of HB 15.

PAULETTE SI MPSQN, Appoi nt ee

to the Personnel Board

Dougl as, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Personnel
Boar d.

LARRY WOOD, Appoi ntee

to the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APQCC)

Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to APCC.

BOB LABBE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on EO 108, explained the
reorgani zati on of DHSS.

KARLEEN JACKSON, Deputy Commi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered question during the
hearing on EO 108.

M KE M LLER, Comm ssi oner

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 11, 2003



Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave sone background regarding HB 158 and
the Al aska Longevity Bonus program

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-19, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representatives Hol m
Seaton, Dahlstrom Berkowitz, Guenberg, and Wyhrauch were
present at the call to order. Representative Lynn arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 15- TELEMARKETERS NO- CALL LI STS

Number 0040

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 15, "An Act relating to establishing the Al aska
No-Call List, a data base of residential telephone custoners who
do not wish to receive telephonic solicitations; providing that
the data base be conpiled at no cost to the custonmers; requiring
paid telephonic sellers to purchase the data base; requiring
tel ephonic sellers to identify thenselves; requiring telephonic
solicitors who are otherwise exenpt from registration as
tel ephonic solicitors to file with the Departnent of Law and
purchase the data base; and providing for an effective date.”

[In commttee packets was a proposed conmttee substitute (CS),

Version |, |abeled 23-LS0058\1, Craver, 2/28/03.]

Number 0219

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE, Alaska State Legislature, sponsor,
referred to Version | and said it provides an opportunity for
people not to receive annoying telephonic solicitations. The
new | anguage puts into place a plan to allow Al askans to submt
their phone nunbers to be placed on a list that will elimnate
sales phone calls from professional solicitors. It would
requi re conpanies involved in telephone soliciting to purchase
that list and nake every attenpt to not call those nunbers.
This won't elimnate every phone call. Goups will still be
permtted to contact their menber s, and conpanies and

organi zati ons that have done business with a custoner within the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2003



| ast two years will still be permtted to contact hones and seek
donati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said this has support from the AARP. He
noted that many telephone solicitor calls are directed toward

seniors. He spoke of the fast-talking scam artists who nake
"too good to cone true" offers, taking the life savings out of
the pockets of nmany of those senior citizens. He opined that
while [federal efforts in progress] wll help, nuch of the
authority must remain in the hands of the state. Not i ng t hat
much of the |anguage is based on Colorado's, he said that state
is "receiving and not losing funds from the program” He told

the conmmttee this is an opportunity to inprove the lives of
constituents by ending "this fast-growng intrusion into our
private |lives." He nentioned an intention to reduce or
elimnate the fiscal note.

Number 0520

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed CS, Version
23-LS0058\1, Craver, 2/28/03, as a work draft. There being no
obj ection, Version | was before the conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE clarified that an annual fee of $5 [to be
paid by the residential subscriber] is part of Version |

Number 0720

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered Amendnent 1, which [applied to
Section 9 of the bill but] read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Section 2. AS 45.50.475(b)
Page 8, line 14, change "engage a person in a
t el ephone conversation repeatedly” to "repeatedly
engage a person in tel ephone conversations."
There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Number 0810

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered Anendnents 2(a) and 2(b).
Amendnent 2(a) read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Section 2. AS 45.50.475(b)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2003



Page 2, line 18, renove "of $750."
Amendnent 2(b) read as follows [original punctuation provided]:
Section 2. AS 45.50.475(b)
Page 2, line 18, renove "of $750."

This provision allows the attorney general to set the
access fee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG not ed t hat Anmendnent 2(a) says it would
be at Ileast $750, and Anmendrment 2(b) allows [the attorney
general] to set the fee.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH surm sed that Representative G uenberg was
asking that the conmttee hold a policy discussion to decide
whet her the $750 should be renoved or put as a "floor."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he assunes [the committee] wants
it to cover the cost. He suggested another option mght be to
change the word "nust”™ on line 21 to "is intended to", for
exanple. He said he'd just like to make sure these things nesh.

Nunmber 0983

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how many solicitations occur in
the state. He explained that the question is whether $750 wll
cover the cost, and that he was trying to wunderstand the
di mensi ons of the issue.

Number 1030

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legislature, said it depends on how many calls are nade
regionally. He surmsed that in Al aska three or four [conpanies
make solicitous in-state calls]; many calls are generated from
Qutside. He estimated that there are 15 to 20 conpanies in the
Seattle area and 30 to 40 conpanies in Colorado. He added,
"Anynore, they seem to be able to call from anywhere in the
country."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested that another alternative is

to charge a fee each tine the list is used, rather than all ow ng
a subscriber to buy the list for a year.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2003



MR. POUND said he would interpret the $750 in the legislation as
a one-tine-only fee per year, nuch like a subscription.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ explained that his suggestion was in
the context of Representative Guenberg's proposal to have a
policy discussion with regard to subsidizing the cost of
mai ntaining the list.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE posited that [having a per-use fee] could
tend to raise admnistrative costs.

Number 1230
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported that his study of the fiscal note

showed that at $750, it would be a $103,000 fiscal note in the
first year, which would take approximtely 125 subscribers to

offset. Referring to the nunbers of conpanies in and out of the
state previously alluded to by M. Pound, he said he was trying
to figure out how the bill woul d be enforced.

Nunmber 1326

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that he thinks there was previous
di scussion regarding that point. He said there are ways of
enforcing it, but there wll also be "sone slippage"; for

i nstance, sone solicitors change phone nunbers and addresses
every week. Regarding the others, he recalled that "there were
ways in which the state could stop those kinds of solicitors, or
force themto buy the list."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked about charging a fee that would pay for
the cost of the program and leaving it up to the agency.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated that's essentially the intent
of Amendnent 2(b).

REPRESENTATI VE FATE expl ained that the fiscal note had not yet
been changed to reflect the effects of the $5 per-person charge.
He added, "That was to have changed this fiscal note and to
have, if not conpletely covered the cost, to have cone very
nearly to covering the cost."

Nunber 1433
MR. POUND, in response to a question from Representative Seaton,

said the phone conpany will have nothing to do with the fees
The conpany involved with the fees will be that with which the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2003



Departnent of Law has contracted, because that is where the data
base will be created.

Nunber 1476

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM told Representative Fate she didn't
understand how the state could nmanage this wthout the phone
conpany's invol venent. She asked if he'd engaged in
conversations with the various |ocal exchange carriers and if
they are able and willing to step up to the plate with regard to
the enforcenent that will go along with this.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said several states do this very nicely. He
deferred to M. Pound.

MR. POUND responded that he'd held a conversation with GO,
whose bi ggest concern was with the managenent of tel ephone |ines
and the associated costs. He noted that the $5 fee and annual

renewal requirement would elimnate GCl's concern. He said,
essentially, a person's nunber would conme off the list if that
person didn't automatically renew and pay the $5 each year. In
further response, he reiterated that no noney would go to the
phone conpany; it wuld go to the contractor that would be
contracted with through the Departnent of Law. It would be a

matter of people's asking to be on the |ist, regardless of what
phone conpany they used.

Nunmber 1648

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said it seens charging people $5 to
assert their privacy rights is a tad peculiar. He asked if
there was any reason not to drop that provision.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE answered that there is probably no reason
but Al aska hasn't had any experience [with a no-call |ist]. He
al so nentioned the state's current popul ation base. The $5 is
necessary in order to pay for the program he opined; however
that doesn't nean that provision can't be dropped in the future,
once there is sone experience in the program

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he can't inagine that the nunber
of people who would register for this service would exceed

20, 000- 50, 000. In that range, he said, the cost of
adm nistering the $5 fees would take nmpbst of what income n ght
result from adm nistering those fees. He added, "I hate to go

to people and say, 'You need to pay in order to be |let alone.’
| think that sends a real m xed nmessage."”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 11, 2003



Number 1760

MR. POUND responded that people already have to pay a phone
conpany for wunlisted telephone nunbers. A $5 user fee would
cover [the state's] expenses. He said, "If we do not charge a
$5 user fee and there is no ability to cancel out a telephone
nunber, the telephone conpany is going to consider that
additional cost on their end, and they're going to end up
charging the fee and they'l|l get the $5."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said it seens [the legislature] could
see that costs are covered by having the anpbunt be nore than
$750. He explained that if people want to pay noney to bother
him at honme, he is quite wlling to let them do that; however,
he doesn't think he should have to pay to tell themto | eave him
al one. He stated his belief that the burden is on [those
conpani es] to gain access to his information, not on himto tel
themto stay away.

MR. POUND told Representative Berkowitz that the "black dot"
list - which the program under discussion has been equated to -
is basically a "pay" service.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ enphasized that it's a [service] wth
t he phone conpany. He said there is an inportant difference
between requiring the governnment to be an agent of pay, as
opposed to a private entity.

Nunmber 1859

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 5, beginning on line 23,
whi ch read:

(4) calls on behalf of the person that
result in violations of this section occur not nore
than twice in a 30-day period [AS 45.50.475 ARE

| NFREQUENT] .
He said the way that reads to himis that a solicitor could cal
once a nonth - basically, several tines a year - and not have a
vi ol ati on.
Nunber 1900

MR. POUND explained that the intent is to allow for two
m stakes. The [l anguage] is not designed so that if a solicitor

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 11, 2003



calls someone who is on the list, he or she can imedi ately be
thrown into jail; it is designed to elimnate as nmany solicitous
phone calls as is practicable. He added, "And if it becones a
probl em under the harassnment section, then it becones a felony."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that his interpretation of the
| anguage is that a solicitor could call once a nonth wthout
being in violation.

MR. POUND said that is the |anguage of the Departnent of Law and
that he doesn't think Representative [Fate] would object to
elimnating that section.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE stated, "You sonetinmes have to nmke
al l omances for m stakes.”" He said he thinks the |anguage sinply
allows for two mistakes in a 30-day period.

Nunber 2015

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he doesn't think it was anybody's
intention to allow a telemarketer to call a person on the no-
call list once a nonth. He asked if he mght be msinterpreting
t he | anguage.

MR POUND said he interpreted the |anguage to say that the
solicitor would not be allowed to make nore than two m stakes
"out of their data base" in a 30-day period.

Number 2030

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to [page 5], beginning on
line 12, which read as foll ows:

(d) A person who enploys individuals to engage
in tel ephonic [TELEPHONE] solicitations is not |iable
for the violation of this section [AS 45.50.475] if an
enpl oyee solicits a residential telephone custoner who
is identified in the data base [TELEPHONE DI RECTORY]
as not wshing to receive telephonic [TELEPHONE]
solicitations if the person established that

(1) the person has adopted and i nplenented
witten procedures to conply with (a) of this section
i ncluding corrective actions where appropri ate;

(2) the person has trained its personnel in
the procedures established under (1) of this
subsecti on;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2003



(3) the call that violated this section [AS
45.50.475] was nmde contrary to the procedures and
policies established by the person; and

(4) calls on behalf of the person that
result in violations of this section occur not nore
than twice in a 30-day period [AS 45.50.475 ARE
| NFREQUENT] .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the way he reads that, a solicitor
can nmake two calls to a person on the [no-call] list in any 30-
day period and get away with it; a solicitor who nakes three or
nore is in violation. He said he could understand the goal from
[the Departnment of] Law, because [the deleted original |anguage
using] the word "infrequent” is vague, which could result in a
constitutional challenge. He said the question is to decide
what the standard ought to be.

Number 2155

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH rem nded the conmmttee that there were still
proposed anendnents pending. He remarked that Representative
Fate had addressed the fiscal note, but it was based on the
original bill. He acknow edged that it would be any sponsor's
concern to have a low fiscal note, but said, "The fiscal note
had not addressed these fee changes.™ He agreed wth

Representative Berkowtz that he doesn't want to have to pay to
have sonmeone not call him which is |ike paying [racketeers] for

protection. He said he also thinks [the I|egislature should]
charge the people who want to take advantage of the consuner by
calling at all hours to pay the cost of the program

Transferring the burden of the cost to the callers mght result
in a zero fiscal note.

Nunmber 2265
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if the purpose of the bill is to

protect people from getting the [solicitous] calls; if so, why
woul d soneone want to pay a $5 fee every year? He enphasized,

"I don't want them to call ever." He asked how the committee
m ght present an option for people to put their names on a |ist
so that they'd never be called. He said Representative
Berkowitz brought up an interesting point about rights.
Representative Holm said, "I'm not sure when you get a phone
that you have a right not to have sonebody ring it." He stated

his wunderstanding that there is machinery currently on the
market for approximately $30 that prevents people from
automatically dialing one's nunber. He asked for guidance. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2003



clarified that he wants to know if this bill wll stop people
fromcalling or only stop them from calling for a year because
the $5 fee has been paid.

Number 2366

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that [HB 15] is not a bill to
protect. He said people would nmake the choice whether to be on
the list.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM responded that he never chose to be called
to begin wth.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asserted that the ability to call people is
sinply freedom of speech. He said HB 15 may not prevent one or
two calls from slipping through, because there are "renegade

solicitors" who make a business of this. He reiterated that
simlar prograns have been successful in other states. He said
[the legislation] would reduce and, in many cases, elimnate

those solicitations that are unwant ed.
Number 2474

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked who would have the burden of
proof that a solicitous phone call was made. She also referred
to page 5 [line 24] and proposed a change from the 30-day period
to no nore than two call in a 365-day period. She added a
suggestion to put everyone on the no-call list and |let those who
want to receive solicitous phone calls pay the fee.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that arbitrarily saying that a
solicitor may call nobody may be unconstitutional because of the
freedom of speech anendnent.

Nunber 2544

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said everyone is angry about getting solicitous
phone calls and [ HB 15] needs to nove.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noted that he has received [nunerous] public
opi nion nessages [in support of] the |egislation.

Nunmber 2588
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ, in regard to Representative Holms

previ ous questions about the propriety of banning people from
maki ng phone calls, said people put "no trespass” signs on their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 11, 2003



doors. He said he honors those when he canpai gns and hopes the
other legislators do too. He said he is weighing in with those
who previously said the $5 fee should not be passed, but that
cost should be passed on to the solicitors. He asked that [the
sponsor] nake sure that [autonmated calls] are addressed as well,
since they aren't live calls from people and are "way nore
annoying than they ought to be, even when they are political
ones fromthe President."”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated his intent to pass the bill out of
commttee by Thursday [March 13, 2003] as a committee substitute
t hat woul d speed through the House Finance Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he would appreciate the assistance of
the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that the $5 issue is a policy
call for this commttee to make, whereas working on the fiscal
note is the job of the House Finance Conmittee.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he thinks the focus of the commttee is to
have "as much of the burden of the program pass to those who
woul d take advantage of the consuner."”

Number 2717

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated a need for either an interstate
conpact or federal |egislation. He suggested adding a provision
to the bill requesting the federal governnent to legislate in
this area, because these conpani es are not Al askan conpani es.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE related his wunderstanding that there is
pendi ng federal |egislation.

Nunber 2804

STEVE CLEARY, Executive D rector, Alaska Public Interest
Research Goup (AKPIRG, let the commttee know that he woul d be
avai |l abl e whenever HB 15 is scheduled again. He said he was in
Col orado recently, and his relatives [|lauded] the programthere.
He said, "The fact that it's nore than paying for itself speaks
to how worthy this programis.”

Nunmber 2869

MARI E DARLIN, AARP Capital Gty Task Force, testified in support
of HB 15, noting that the conmttee had a letter of support from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2003



[ AARP' s] state office in which it addressed the fact that there
is currently proposed federal |egislation. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, she said AARP's nenbers strongly feel that [Al aska] needs
to have its own |aw, because the [pending] federal |aw does not
go far enough and doesn't preclude states from having "stronger
bills." She noted that the "black dot" program costs $5 to $8,
depending on a person's phone conpany's rates. She said
probably two-thirds of seniors [in Al aska] would pay $1, if that
anount were offered, in order not to be called [by solicitors].

Nunmber 2946

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRY  CRAWFORD, Al aska State Legislature,
cosponsor HB 15, said the amount of $750 was set in an effort to
establish a self-supporting program after |ooking at other
states' prograns, which were between $300 and $800.

TAPE 03-19, SIDE B
Number 2996

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said the program should be paid for by
the people who want to nake noney with it; consumers shouldn't
have to pay to be left alone. He referred to the current "bl ack
dot" list and said, in sone places in rural Al aska, it costs up
to $50 to get on it. He noted that only 2 percent of
subscribers in Alaska get on that |ist, whereas in other states
that have a do-not-call |ist, the nunber of subscribers is 10 to
20 percent. He offered his belief that $750 would be an
adequate anmount to attract third-party contractors to adm nister
the programat no cost to the state.

Number 2917
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Representative Crawford if he
knows if other states have a mandatory fine for violation of the

provi si ons.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD answered, "lIt's all over the board as to

what beconmes a violation.™ He said he thinks two calls per
nonth is probably the nost lax. He noted that [the sponsor] had
used much of the |anguage fromthe Col orado bill, but added, "W

| eft that part out."
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWTZ said it seens that if there were

mandatory sanctions for violations, those sanctions would help
offset the cost of the program He added, "There's unscrupul ous

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 11, 2003



solicitors out there, and we ought to be dinging them for the
cost of this, rather than the people of the state.”

Nunber 2878

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said the State of Oregon is nmaking nore
noney back on the programwith its prosecutions than it ever put

out . It is a positive fiscal note once the program gets under
way. He informed the commttee that when Louisiana [adopted] a
do-not-call list, 50,000 people signed up in the first week.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE nentioned including the Departnent of Law in
di scussions of HB 15 [that would take place between this neeting
date and the next hearing on March 13, 2003].

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 15 woul d be held over.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

CHAI R VVEYHRAUCH brought before the commttee the confirmtions
of Paulette Sinpson and Larry Wod, appointees to the Personnel
Board and the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion, respectively.

Per sonnel Board

Nunber 2796

PAULETTE SI MPSON, Appointee to the Personnel Board, related her
understanding that the function of the [Personnel Board] is to
approve and di sapprove anmendnents to the state personnel rules,
to consider extensions of the partially exenpt and classified
service, and to hear appeals under the Al aska Executive Branch
Ethics Act. She said she is pleased to be able to serve on the
board.

Number 2760

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Ms. Sinpson to confirm that she
is an official with the Republican Party.

M5. SI MPSON said she is vice chair [of the state party].
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ explained his reason for asking
Several years ago, when Katie Hurley was nom nated to serve, the

majority in the legislature at that time rejected her
appoi nt nrent because of her partisan affiliation. He asked Ms.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 11, 2003



Simpson to comment on that action and how that m ght bear on her
own nom nati on.

M5. SIMPSON responded that she thinks that is a judgnent the
| egislature will have to nake. She said she is reviewing the
m nutes of the past two years with regard to the activities of
t he Personnel Board. Saying she frankly doesn't see nmuch of a
conflict there, she invited nmenbers to review those m nutes.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ made the foll ow ng statenent:

When the legislature rejected Katie Hurley, | thought
that was one of the nost disgraceful nonents during ny
service in the legislature. And | don't think that

just because soneone has a partisan office necessarily
disqualifies [him or her] from serving on a public
comm ssion. | just wanted that to be clear.

Nunber 2682

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surmised that [the board] acts on
executive ethics conplaints.

M5. SI MPSON answer ed, "When there are sone, yes."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether it sits in a quasi-

judicial capacity. He said there is concern, not on a partisan
basis, but as to whether there is an inherent conflict. He
expl ai ned, "Wen sonebody sits in a quasi-judicial capacity, and
when they have an official partisan office, ... they may each
i npact on each other. And | haven't figured out exactly what
the right result is yet, but | just wanted that on the record,
because we went through this on the House floor |ast week." He

told Ms. Sinpson it sounds as though she is in a simlar
situation to the one involving M. Ruedrich [a Republican Party
official who is also on the Regulatory Comm ssioner of Al aska
(RCA)], and that this is a quasi-judicial body.

Number 2589
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Ms. Sinpson how she would act if,

for exanpl e, there were an et hics conpl ai nt agai nst
M. Ruedrich. He asked if she would recuse herself.

M5. SIMPSON responded, "I expect | wuld be required to."
Regarding her famliarity with the board's responsibilities, she
said she has read all the mnutes. Most of the ethics

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2003



conplaints are not nmade public, and it is difficult to tell when

readi ng the m nutes which ones have been considered. |In further
response, M. Sinpson said she believes she can sit "fairly and
obj ectively." She added that she doesn't believe she'd have

been nomi nated to serve if she weren't viewed as being as fairly
obj ecti ve.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ expl ained that M. Sinpson's nanme had
cone up in conjunction with taking over party services because
M. Ruedrich had said he was not going to be serving in that
capacity; thus she clearly would be working closely with himin
her party position.

M5. SI MPSON expl ained that [M. Ruedrich] had taken over all of
the federal issues of the party, whereas she is working in
districts and on statew de fundrai sing. She said although she
contacts [M. Ruedrich] from tinmne to tine, a division of
responsibilities exists.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that M. Sinpson's work with the school
district and raising her children was not included on her
resune.

M5. SI MPSON added, "Or the nuseum”

Nunmber 2485

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that none of his previous
comments were neant to reflect personally on Ms. Sinpson

[ Al though no formal notion was nade, the nom nation of Paulette
Si npson, appointee to the Personnel Board, was treated as
advanced fromthe House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.]

Al aska Public O fices Conmm ssion

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 157]
Nunber 2470

LARRY WOOD, Appointee to the Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion
(APQC), told the conmttee he was born in Alaska in 1950; spent
sone "growi ng-up years" in Washington State; and has spent the
| ast 18 years in Al aska, in Fairbanks and then in Eagle River

He is married with four children. He is an attorney who has
been practicing in Alaska for 28 years, the last 12 years wth
Al yeska Pipeline Service Conpany, currently as assistant general

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2003



counsel . He said he has previously served as a general counsel
at the Alaska Railroad Corporation and, prior to that, as chief
assistant attorney general for the State of Al aska in Fairbanks.

MR. WOOD noted the irony of being before the conmttee while
pendi ng legislation exists [HB 157, which would elimnate APQC].
In response to a question by Representative Berkowtz, he
clarified that his name mght be fam liar because a different
Larry Wod, perhaps from Palner, ran for a House seat this past
fall.

Nunber 2348

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Wod to describe his views on
the role of APOC and his role as a conmni ssi oner.

MR WOOD |isted four central functions of the comm ssion:
canpai gn financing, |obbying registration, disclosure of incone
and interests of public officials and candi dates, and regul ation
and enforcenent of conplaints for the aforenentioned areas. He
described the role of comm ssioners as follows: to help oversee
the work of the staff and the director in enforcing and ensuring
that those laws are fairly adm nistered and, fromtine to tine,

to adjudicate conplaints that conme before the body. In further
response, he said his philosophy is that those things are very
i nportant. The agency has its roots in 1974 |egislation.

Across the country, historically, there have been canpaign
finance reform bills and legislation inpacting all the states.
He said he believes in the firmadmnistrating of those |aws and
he expects that [Alaskal] w Il continue to ensure that |[those
| aws] are protected and honored.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked M. Wod if he had any thoughts
regardi ng the proposed elimnation of APCC

MR. WOOD responded that obviously oil production and revenues
are declining. He said he is synpathetic to the task faced by
the governor and the current legislators to attenpt to identify

efficiencies in state governnent. Furthernore, this is a
regul atory and quasi-judicial agency. He noted that [the
comm ssion] held a teleconference yesterday and is beginning to
assenble facts and a history. He nentioned a brief discussion
of what [the comm ssion's] functions are and what it's doing in
order to assist the governor and the |egislature. He said, "I
think it's incunbent now, in our agency, to ensure you have al
the facts and information you'll need to nake the right
deci sions."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 11, 2003



[ Although no formal notion was nmde, the nomination of Larry
Wod, appointee to the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion, was
treated as advanced from the House State Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.]

EXECUTI VE ORDER 108 - TRANSFER FUNCTI ONS TO DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
& SOCI AL SERVI CES

Nunber 2140

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
Executive Oder (EO 108, transferring functions to the
Department of Health & Social Services.

Number 2063

BOB LABBE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), explained that
nost of the reorganization of DHSS isn't included in EO 108
because it could be done wthout an executive order. The
primary action called for in EO 108 is the novenent by statute
of sonme prograns that are currently in other departnents and of
sonme "conm ssion and board activity" into DHSS. The goal is to
i nprove program alignnent and to consolidate simlar prograns
wi thin the departnent. M. Labbe said the departnment would be
giving a presentation and providing details at the 3:00 p.m
House Health, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee
neeting on this date.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noted the need for the current commttee to hear
it too.

MR. LABBE suggested starting wth the presentation and then
addressing the executive order. He reiterated that the intent
[of EO 108] is to integrate the services and conbine simlar
prograns for alignment, wth the idea to inprove custoner
service, efficiency, and coordination of prograns. For exanpl e,
he said [DHSS] worked with the D vision of Senior Services,
which is part of the Department of Adm nistration, to adm nister
hone- and community-based care progranms for seniors and persons
with disabilities. During that tinme [DHSS] found that to nake
certain inprovenents often required two conm ssioners and three
or four division directors to get together. He said it was a
great collaboration, but things didn't nove as efficiently as
they could have by putting everything under one departnent and
into a single division.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 11, 2003



MR. LABBE noted that the reorganization will create several new

di vi sions by conbi ni ng divisions. He referred to page three of
a docunent ["Reorganizing Al aska's Departnent of Health & Socia
Services for Better Custoner Service," included in the commttee
packet, of which page three was henceforth handed out in a
| arger print]. He explained that the D vision of Longevity
Progranms, including the Longevity Bonus and the Pioneers' Hones,
will be noved [from the Departnment of Admi nistration] to DHSS.

"Child Care Assistance" and Child Care Licensing wll be noved
from the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnment (EED)
into DHSS, and the Comm ssion on Aging and the Al aska Pioneers'
Hones Advi sory Board will be noved into DHSS, he not ed.

Nunmber 1676

MR. LABBE said [DHSS] has <changed the designation of the
Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse - separately identified in
statute - by putting its duties and responsibilities under DHSS
general ly. QO her adjustnments in the proposed restructuring
include creating these new divisions. Two new offices are
established within the departnent. One, an office of rate

review, would oversee rate setting for all of the fee-based
prograns; work on alignnment; and neke sure rates are well
t hought out, reasonable, and well-nmanaged, and that they nake
sense "across things that are simlarly performed throughout the
year [by] the departnent.” He expl ai ned:

This would include such things as our hospital and
nursing rates through Medicaid, our foster care rates,
our childcare facility rates, that sort of thing. W
wanted to create a body of expertise. We've also
created an Ofice of Program Review, which wll be
primarily into ensuring that the prograns are worKking
wel | together and to provide oversight, and to nmake
sure that we're nmaximzing our use of federal funds
and di m ni shing our use of state general funds.

One of the things we can do, by sonme of these
consolidations, is to conbine sone of our federal
funding program with sonme of our general fund prograns
that are providing simlar services, so that we can
| ook at the opportunities to replace the general fund
because of our fiscal issues that we're dealing wth.

We're also going to increase our enphasis on program
integrity, aimng to curb instances of fraud and abuse

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 11, 2003



in program services, and we're going to have an
increased focus on our faith-based initiative.
Karl een [Jackson] w Il be heading that upward. W' re

very interested in inproving custoner service SO
that we are responding appropriately and pronptly to
constituents, not always getting what you' re asking
for, but at |east getting a response pronptly. And |
think with the way sone of it has been organized in
the past has ... just sort of evolved over tine.
People are kind of bounced around too nmany spots
soneti mes, because of the way the prograns have been
pl aced.

Number 1449

MR. LABBE said a third deputy [conm ssioner] position is being
established and wll replace the director of the current
Division of Famly & Youth Services (DFYS), which wll
essentially be elimnated; a new Ofice of Children's Services
will be created. He nentioned that the traditional <child
protection activity wll be in that office. [A large chart was
pl aced in position for view ng.]

MR. LABBE noted that sone prograns which currently reside in the
departnment in other divisions, primarily in the D vision of
Public Health, will be noved into the new Ofice of Children's
Services: the WC Program [ Speci al Suppl enent al Nutrition
Program for Wnen, Infants and Children], the Infant Learning
Program and the Healthy Famlies Program In response to a
query by Chair Wyhrauch, he said the chart is the proposed
reorgani zati on, supported both by EO 108 and adjustnents nade
under the comm ssioner's authority. The mpjority of functions
are currently in DFYS The governor w shed to elevate the
position, acknow edging the inportance of this area, he said,
and [DHSS] has renaned it the Ofice of Children's Services. He
added, "W also wanted to put in sone famly support service
activity, so the focus was not sinply on the child protection
and foster care, but also to provide sonme additional services in
that, so we can consolidate services for children in a single
di vision."

Number 1294
MR. LABBE said the Division of Health Care Services is new and

is a creation from the current D vision of Medical Assistance,
whi ch has adm ni stered the Medicaid program He conti nued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 11, 2003



We al so have conbined, in this program sone other
Division of Public Health progranms, such as the Breast
and Cervical Cancer screening program [and] |I|nfant
Screening and Testing prograns. And in this health
care services area, we have also taken out of the
Division of Medical Assistance sone responsibilities
that have been tied to the Medicaid program for
behavioral health and Ilong-termcare services and
noved these other divisions [that] we'll get to.

MR. LABBE said the intent with regard to the Division of Health

Care Services is as foll ows:

The primary custonmer focus is the health care provider
community that receives provider paynments for health
services. This would be your physicians and hospitals
and doctors and pharnacists. And we found that the
provi der groups that t hese ot her public health
prograns were working with were essentially the sane
they were receiving for simlar health services. So,
that's really what's behind that area.

MR. LABBE noted that the Division of Al aska Longevity Prograns
is transferred by EO 108 and that there are no other changes

within the structure at this tine.

Number 1173

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about public health.

MR. LABBE answered that it wll <continue to exist as

Division of Public Health, but the focus will be on its
public function. He el aborated:

Thi s di vi si on focuses on, primarily, di sease
prevention and control, homeland security related to
public health. | think you're all aware of the work

that's being done in the bioterrorismactivity and the
infrastructure that's being put together there, the
recent discussions with small pox and whatnot - this is
all being handled in that division.

W're also consolidating sone of our ... planning
functions. ... Part of our facility planning has been
in our Division of Admnistrative Services that 1is
handling certificate-of-need functions, and we are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 11

t he
core

2003



putting those into this reconstituted Division of
Publ i c Heal th.

And we're also anticipating consolidation of |icensing
of health care and other departnment providers. That
woul d  not happen i nmmedi ately, but would happen
probably the following year; ... we would bring in not
only our hospi t al and nursing hone licensing
functions, but also the assisted living, childcare
| icensing, and foster-care licensing into one section.
That won't show up in the '04; that would be probably
an '05 action. That's sort of further down.

MR. LABBE indicated the Dyvision of Senior and Disability

Services on the chart. He said EO 108 wll bring in sone
functions that have been in the D vision of Senior Services,
Department of Adm nistration. He noted that currently there is
a Division of Mental Health and Devel opnental Disabilities. The
devel opnmental disabilities part wll be nerged into the new
Division of Senior and Disability Services, which will provide a
broader array of long-term care services, conmunity-based

services that are provided under Medicaid waivers for both the
"DD'" [devel opnental disabilities] and the senior and disabled
popul ations, currently admnistered by two different divisions
and two different departnments. The Medicaid financing, he said,
which had all been part of the current Division of Medical
Assi stance, would be noved into that division. He said the
Division of Health Care Services would have "sort of" the acute
care; the Division of Senior and Disability Services would have
the long-termcare and "Medi caid financing."

Nunmber 0899

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked whet her "independent living" fits into
this departnent.

MR. LABBE said he believes that can be found in the Departnent
of Labor [& Workforce Devel opnent], associated with the D vision
of Vocational Rehabilitation. At this point, he said, it isn't
part of the restructuring being addressed, although it mght be
sonmething to consider |ater. Returning to his presentation, he
conti nued:

The other piece here that is sort of what we would
call our "phase two," ... the Adult Public Assistance
Program which is ... cash assistance for persons with
disabilities and seniors that's currently adm nistered

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 11, 2003



in the Division of Public Assistance. W envi sion
transferring that whole set of responsibilities to the
Division of Senior and Disabilities Services, but it
won't show up in the '04 budget; it wll be nost
likely the follow ng year, because it's a significant
restructuring in itself. But the idea when we're done
is that you wuld have all of the senior and
disabilities services in one place. Application[s]
for cash grant, nmedical assistance, [and] comunity-
based care all can be handl ed through that one stop.

MR. LABBE invited his colleague to outline the next colum on
the chart.

Nunmber 0758

KARLEEN JACKSON, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Ofice of t he
Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health & Social Services), noted
that M. Labbe has been working [with the proposed changes]
"forever," whereas she is looking at it with "new eyes," nore
like the commttee nenbers. She returned attention to the
Ofice of Children's Services [colum] and noted that all the
itens listed without sonething in parentheses are already wthin
what is now called DFYS. She clarified that unless there are
par ent heses, not hi ng has changed.

M5. JACKSON |isted the itenms in the third colum on the chart,
which read [wth a few technical and formatting changes]:

Di vi sion of Public Assistance
Current functions of DPA (except APA)
Denali KidCare Qutreach (from DPH)
Chi | dcare Assi st ance

D vision of Adm nistrative Services
Current functions of DAS (except Health Pl anning

& CON)
Di vi sion of Juvenile Justice
No changes

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health
Ment al Heal th Prograns
Al aska Psychiatric Institute
Resi dential Psychiatric Treatnment Centers (RPTCs)
(from DVA)
| npatient Psychiatric Care (from DVA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 11, 2003



Subst ance Abuse Prograns (from ADA)
Fetal Al cohol Syndrone Program (from ADA)

Boards and Comm ssi ons

Sui ci de Prevention Counci

Al aska Mental Health Board

Governor's Advi sory Board on Al coholismand Drug
Abuse

Al aska Conm ssion on Agi ng

Governor's Council on Disabilities and Speci al
Educati on

Pi oneers' Hones Advi sory Board

M5. JACKSON said the biggest change within this block lies in
the Division of Behavioral Health, a new concept of dealing with
co-occurring disorders which so many of the departnent's clients
have, involving nental health and substance abuse. She said the
boards and conm ssions are essentially the sanme, except for the
addition of the Alaska Comm ssion on Aging and the Al aska
Pi oneers' Hones Advi sory Board.

Number 0535

MR. LABBE, in response to a question from Representative Seaton,
said the Public Health Nursing section remains in the Division
of Public Health. He reiterated that the Infant Learning
Program and the Healthy Families [Al aska] are noving to the
Ofice of Children's Services. He nentioned the Breast and
Cervical Cancer [Screening] and the Infant Screening and Testing
[ prograns, listed under the Division of Health Care Services].
He said he thinks it has been found that the Public Health
Nursing section of the D vision of Public Health is also a
service provider, and wll continue to provide services that
woul d be partially supported through the Division of Health Care
Servi ces. He nentioned the Medicaid program s having paid for
nurses to provide nore child screening, for exanple, and said
that wll continue, "especially in those areas that don't have
that kind of capacity in the private sector, or other types of
providers to do that work."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sunmari zed his understandi ng, then, that a
public health nurse would serve as a contract agent for the
Division of Health Care Services, doing infant screening in
appropriate areas, or that a private clinic also could do that
screening as a contractor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 11, 2003



MR. LABBE responded, "I believe that would be the way | would
| ook at it."

Nunber 0410

MR. LABBE said part of the departnent's initial concept was the
decentralization of the Medicaid program which was in excess of
$800 mllion. He said it is, essentially, a federal program
that pays for state services and requires state matching funds.
He said the types of services supported by that program are
sonetinmes referred to by people as "health services"; however,
he stated the foll ow ng:

This whole Ilong-termcare area, which is heavily
Medi cai d-fi nanced ar ound t he country, i ncl udi ng
Al aska, ... includes your nursing facilities and your
honecare services. [It] really takes on a different
focus and constituency around it in, say, your
physician services and your hospi t al servi ces.
Splitting those up allows nore mnanagenent oversight
and nore focus on that.

A nunmber of states have noved in this direction and,

given our fiscal issues today, | think that for a
long tinme we thought, "Well, we can nmake this work the
way we were doing it." But it creates nore fiscal

responsibility in the divisions that are actually
doing the day-to-day adm nistration of comunity-based
care service and the authorization.

In the past we've had, through D vision of Mdical
Assi stance, agreenents with other divisions to, say,
screen people and sign them up for these prograns, but
the fiscal responsibility all went to the Division of
Medi cal Assi stance. And so the Division of Medical
Assi stance budget would grow and grow and grow, and
t hose people nmeking the decisions about the services
wer e sonmewhere el se.

And so, by noving the fiscal responsibility and the
regulatory responsibility there, | +think that the
directors and I, ... our intent is to hold the
directors of these divisions accountable, provide them
the tools and flexibility to manage these areas.

W believe that we can nmeke a significant inprovenent
in not only the access and service ... in the custoner
service, but also the efficiency of the program - not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 11, 2003



only admnistrative efficiency, but also fiscal
sinply | ooking at program opportunities.

And the Division of Behavioral Health is another good
exanple where we have Medicaid through the prior
division paying for like nental health services to
psychiatric hospitals and psychiatric facilities, and
the Division of Mental Health providing grants - the
comunity provi ders. And by putting this
institutional community together under a director
whose job it is to make sure all that's working well

there's sonme opportunity to providing a broader
array of comunity services and probably reducing
institutional costs, which are generally so nuch
hi gher than comunity-based service.

There's a nunber of progranmatic issues that are
buried in the structure, and the structure we believe
wll nove us closer to a nodel that will allow us to
focus on these things.

Number 0071

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "I think what |'m hearing you say is
that we're qualifying too many people, and if we put the budget
in with each one of those purposes, then we'll have the people
not qualify as nany people.” He nentioned meking individual
j udgnent s.

TAPE 03-20, SIDE A

Number 0001

MR. LABBE responded that the person responsible for a budget in
an area wll be accountable to nmake sure that the decision
making is accurate. That person will also have authority to
develop regulations to nmke sure only the nobst appropriate
services are being provided, for exanple. There wll be nore
"direct line" responsibility. The issue right now, he said, is
who is in charge. He said [the departnent] wll be working

through the O fice of Program Review on programintegrity.
Nunber 0164
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated concern that in sone areas there

are aggressive providers who, following regulations, bring
people into the system which increases the |oad. He continued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 11, 2003



I'm a little unconfortable, if what we're saying is
we're going to give the budget over here so that
i ndi vidual providers have to pick and choose who is
going to receive services, instead of changing the
regulations to |imt who 1is going to receive,
statew de, those services.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked that [the department] "incorporate
that into this, so that everybody is playing with the sane
ball."

Nunber 0271

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ commended and thanked [M. Labbe and
Ms. Jackson]. He asked themto renmenber, as they go through the
budget battles, that the departnment 1is about people, not
prograns, and to fight hard for their budget dollars. He noted
that Denali KidCare, for exanple, has been viewed sonetines as
being on the chopping block or at Ileast being trimed back.
Asking them to continue to aggressively expand the program he
said there were sone innovative results in the task force that
the last admnistration initiated, suggesting ways of pooling
pharmaceutical costs with other states that result in reduced
costs. He indicated there are many initiatives in other states
to ensure quality medical care and reducing the overall cost of
medi cine; he posited that [the departnent] needs to continue
[l ooking at those options].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKONTZ said the courts have been very

aggressive with nental health. He remarked, "I want to nmake
sure that we're continuing in that direction.” He said he has
hear d over much di scussi on r egar di ng pr ogr ans, and he

reenphasi zed that he is watching what the reorgani zati on does in
terms of how it affects people. He spoke of hones devastated by
donmestic violence, child abuse, people who have an inability to
get access to health care, and naking people choose between

children as to who gets what. He said, "Those are really
dramati c choi ces. I don't think we should be trying to bal ance
t he budget on the backs of those people.” He asked M. Labbe

and Ms. Jackson to carry that nessage where it needs to go.
Nunber 0472

IVB. JACKSON said she really appreciates Representati ve
Berkowitz's comments and, having newly conme from the nonprofit

sector and having dealt with those famlies, agrees with his
st at enent s. Part of her personal focus, she said, is ensuring

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 11, 2003



that there are program alignnents that allow those being served
to see the state as invisible - not to have to deal wth
different divisions or prograns, but to be able to walk in with
conpl ex needs and get the services they require. She noted that
M. Labbe not only is an expert at the details of program and
budget, but also has "a heart for the people we serve."

Number 0559

MR. LABBE told the conmttee the reorganization plan was
announced on March 4 [2003] and the governor released his budget
on March 6, which reflects a nunber of the previously discussed
changes in the FY 04 budget. He said EO 108 would take effect
July 1, 2003, which is when nost of the inplenentation would
t ake pl ace. Sonme [changes] would be inplenented in 2004, such
as the Adult Public Assistance and the licensing-functions
consolidation. He said it is an anbitious agenda, with a | ot of
work to do internally and externally.

Nunmber 0665

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the Division of Senior and
Disabilities Services would include all disability services, for
exanple, "children" and "di sabl ed" as well as seniors.

MR. LABBE responded, "The disabilities would include children,
as well, that are receiving the Medicaid comunity-based
services." He nentioned that the Infant Learning Program
provi des sone services to children with disabilities, but the
Medi cai d-fi nanced services and the developnentally disabled
grant services would be part of that disability distribution.

MR. LABBE told the conmttee, regarding the federal Medicaid
program that there are only certain things that the federal
government will allow when "you break up the package." For
exanple, [the departnent] can't split physician services between
two divisions. As a result, [the departnent] ends up with not
just seniors in the Dwvision of Senior Services, but wth
younger people who, for exanple, are receiving "sone type of
personal care attendant - it could be a famly nenber - because
you just have to administer the one spot.” He nentioned
"smal l er nunbers of individuals that are in that group” and
added, "So, the larger group is served when you consolidate it."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that this is the only comttee of
referral for EO 108.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 11, 2003



Nunmber 0880

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to advance EO 108 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, EO 108 was advanced from the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

Nunmber 0956

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested it would be appropriate for
the House Health, Education and Social Services Standing
Commttee to view [ EO 108] as wel |l

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH sai d that could be a consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said the conmittee did not hear any
contrary opinion and he doesn't know if it exists. If there is
criticism he  suggest ed, per haps t he | egi sl ature could
"constructively nodi fy conponents of this change.”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH responded that public notice of the current
heari ng was given and no one was present to testify on EO 108 or
criticize it. No one responded by e-mail or in witing, either,
he not ed. He said the other EGs are getting nore attention.
[ EO 108 was advanced fromcomm ttee.]

HB 158- ELI M NATI NG LONGEVI TY BONUS PROGRAM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the l|ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 158, "An Act elimnating the |ongevity bonus
program and meki ng rel ated conform ng changes; and providing for
an effective date."

Nunber 1070

M KE M LLER, Comnm ssioner, Departnent of Adm nistration (DA,
explained that his role was to give sone background regardi ng HB
158 and the Al aska Longevity Bonus program He rem nded the
commttee that there have been three mmjor votes in the
| egi sl ature regarding the Al aska Longevity Bonus program he was
in the legislature for two of those votes, while his older
brother was in the legislature for the first vote. He said he
di scussed the first vote at length with his brother. The vote
was taken in the md-1970s and created the Al aska Longevity
Bonus program at that tine, it had a type of sunset clause
because the only people who could qualify were those who' d been
in Al aska before 1959 - before statehood. Conmi ssioner Ml er

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 11, 2003



said, according to his older brother, it was an effort to reward
Al askans who had been in the state during the territorial days.

COM SSIONER M LLER said there was a case against a longevity
bonus program in 1984 - the Vest case - which challenged the
constitutionality of the territorial clause; the State of Al aska
lost in the Al aska Suprene Court. Comm ssioner MIller said he
was in the legislature at that time and it had two choices:
abolish the programor open it up to all seniors. He noted that
[the state] was "awash in oil dollars" at the tine and opened
the program up to all seniors. He indicated, in retrospect,
that this was a m st ake.

Number 1237

COMWM SSIONER M LLER said in 1994 the programis costs were
beginning to "run wild" in the anpbunt of $67 mllion and were
projected to be over $100 nmllion within the next couple of
years, with no end in sight; [the |egislature] decided sonething
had to be done and chose to "stair step" the program He took
responsibility for that decision which, he opined, turned out to
be the wrong one. Two classes of seniors were unintentionally
created: those who collect [the bonus check] and those who
don't. He estimated that there are 18,000 people collecting
[l ongevity bonus] checks. His sources tell him that there are
approxi mately 38,000 people in Alaska over the age of 65. He
added that there's no rationale of "why you get it, or why you
do not get it."

COWM SSI ONER M LLER shared stories illustrating that the result
of the stair stepping was that sonme seniors born and raised in
Al aska, but born one year past the cutoff date, did not qualify,
whereas others qualified for the program after having noved up
from "Qutside,"” for exanple. He said the program no | onger
serves its original intent; the program passed in the '70s bears
no resenblance to the one in existence today. Comm ssi oner
MIler said this is one reason he is personally supporting the
bill to elimnate the program In response to a question by
Chair Wyhrauch, he said the original bill [required that a
person had to be] 65 years old. He said he believes that
currently the youngest senior on the programis 72.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "That's correct."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered his wunderstanding that [the current
qualifications] require a senior to be 72 to collect it.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 11, 2003



COM SSI ONER M LLER answered yes, "assumng that they were in
the state at the tinme that the last step took place.” He said
his nother is 86 years old, was out of the state approxinately
five years during the stair stepping, is now back in the state
but does not qualify, even though he believes she paid her dues
in the territorial days and early statehood. In further
response, he said he doesn't know the exact nunber of people in
Al aska who are at least 72 years old. He reiterated that there
are two groups of seniors for whom in his opinion, there is
little rhyme or reason why they've been divided that way.

Nunber 1514

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ di sagr eed. Noting that a statute cane
into effect in 1996, he said about the program "It was a
prom se that apparently that legislature felt it couldn't keep
in perpetuity, so, in essence, it phased out the program that
constitutes rhynme and reason.” He said he appreciates the
difficult financial position it puts the state in, but a promse
was nade to seniors, many of whom are depending on the incone
from the |ongevity bonus and nost of whom are on fixed incones.
For exanpl e, according to sonme surveys he has viewed, he said up
to 65 percent of the people in the Mtanuska-Susitna area who

collected [the bonus] in 1993 indicated it was absolutely
essential for their well-being. He told Representative MIler,
"You mght disagree with it, but to dismss it as being wthout
sense, | think, overstates your case."

COM SSIONER M LLER explained that the "rhyne or reason”
referred to the legislature's lacking the political courage to
say, "Enough is enough." He said he would agree to disagree
[Wwth Representative Berkowtz].

Nunber 1610

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there had ever been an analysis done
during Conm ssioner Mller's tinme in the legislature to consider
maki ng t he program needs- based.

COMWM SSIONER M LLER said there had been sone discussion

however, there was disagreenent within the senior comunity as
to whether to nake it needs-based. He said he believed that the
prior [Know es] admnistration offered proposals a couple of
times to make it needs-based, but the legislature, for whatever
reason, decided not to do that.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 11, 2003



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there had been discussion regarding
havi ng people "check off" whether they want the |ongevity bonus
or not.

COW SSI ONER M LLER said he doesn't believe that discussion took
pl ace, although people could make that choice by not applying

for the bonus. In response to a question regardi ng how people
sign up each year, Conmm ssioner MIIler explained that people who
recei ve the check each year fill out a formfound on each check.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there'd ever been an attenpt to send a
formout to qualifying seniors asking if they want to receive a
| ongevity bonus, asking themto sign and send the form back.

Nunber 1735

COM SSIONER M LLER said he doesn't believe that sort of
"bl anket statenent" had even been discussed. He rem nded the
commttee that unlike an executive order, a bill can be changed
[to incorporate] different ideas. He agreed to a request nmde
by Chair Wyhrauch to "send us the form" |In further response,

he related his belief that checks go out either at the end of
the nonth or at the first of the nonth.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there had been any analysis to
determne what the predomnate use of the noney received by
seniors is.

COM SSI ONER M LLER i ndicated he didn't know.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH offered that he has heard the noney is used to
of fset the cost of prescription drugs.

COM SSI ONER M LLER sai d he understands what a tough decision is
before the committee. [The state] would spend approximtely
$47.5 mllion on the program [in 2003]. The | egislature needs
to ask if that's affordable or whether sone of that noney woul d
be better spent in other areas for seniors. The question he
posed to the conmttee is whether it should spend limted
dollars as a "blanket" to all seniors, or to help those nost in
need. He said he personally believes in the latter.

Number 1900
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked that top departnent officials be involved

on future hearings [of HB 158]. He al so requested the presence
of the [assistant] attorney general tasked with drafting the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 11, 2003



bill, and asked for as nuch information as possible on the
program to be given to the commttee and nade public in advance
of the next scheduled hearing. He said this issue is an
i nportant one.

Nunber 1982

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN remarked that he is over 70 years old and
doesn't receive the longevity bonus. He said he supports
Governor Murkowski's "courageous" [financial] plan, but that he
al so believes in keeping his own canpaign prom ses, one of which
he read as follows, "Bob Lynn believes in your |ongevity bonus
as a contract between Al aska seniors and the State of Al aska
"1l protect [the] |ongevity bonus contract."”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he thinks people need to be able to

trust their government and those they elect. In the world of
politics, he said, "old folks are too often a target of fiscal
opportunity.” He noted that 18,000 [seniors] does not

constitute a large portion of the overall state popul ation of
approxi mately 650,000. He added, "So it's kind of easy pickings
to pick up $47 mllion dollars there." He agreed that [the
state] obviously needs the $47 mllion, because it facing a
fiscal crisis; however, he suggested that a cruise ship tax
woul d raise that anmount, for exanple, or a car rental tax. He
said the |list goes on regarding where noney can be raised. He
added, "The pickings are easier from the elderly than they are
from the big guys who have | obbyists and who have the bucks to
fight this type of thing." He said he wll keep his prom ses
and respect his elders. He noted that this isn't a personal
i ssue, but a political one.

Number 2139

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if anyone had conducted a recent
econom ¢ analysis of the inmpact of cutting the |longevity bonus.
He said he was aware of a 2000 analysis by the MDowell G oup
and another done by Legislative Research about 10 to 15 years
ago. He asked for an update <containing the follow ng
i nformation: the contribution this $47 nillion nakes to the
econony, who the beneficiaries are, where the noney is spent,
and whether it has a different nultiplier than nmultipliers from
ot her aspects of the econony.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ shared a concern raised to him by a

senior constituent that seniors on fixed incones spend a |ot of
their noney in the state, and that seniors on fixed incomnes

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 11, 2003



m ght be forced to sell their homes [if HB 148 passes]. He
asked if the adm nistration had given any consideration to those
concerns and, if so, what evidence it has to support the
elimnation of a |ongevity bonus.

Nunber 2215

COW SSI ONER M LLER said he would do his best to find "whatever
i nfformati on we have on hand."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated: "It is somewhat appalling that
a change of this magnitude was contenplated wthout doing the
prelimnary honmework."

Nunber 2235

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said [$47] million is a lot of noney.
Gven the lengthy history of various admnistrations' attenpts
to attack this program and the lengthy history of |egislative
support for the program he suggested that the admnistration
knew HB 158 would be controversial; therefore, it nust have an
alternative plan. He asked Comm ssioner MIler, "Were else can
you cut into your departnent?”

COMWM SSIONER M LLER said his departnment has |arge areas where
general fund dollars exist, such as the Ofice of the Public
Def ender, OPA [Ofice of Public Advocacy], and "leasings," but
"l easings"” is the only area that can and is being considered for
cuts. He indicated that Pioneers' Hones and Senior Services
have |arge anounts of general fund dollars, but will be noving
to the Departnent of Health & Social Services. He nentioned the
[ Di vi si on] of Motor Vehicles [within the Departnent of
Adm ni stration] as another agency with general fund dollars. He
i ndi cated sone things just cannot be touched.

Number 2357

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his previous question was partly
rhetorical because he knows there aren't nmany areas [where cuts

can occur]. He then nentioned an issue before the conmttee the
prior week regarding public facilities, which are adm nistered
by several different departnents. He asked Conm ssioner Ml er

if he believed there would be any cost savings in consolidating
the adm nistration of public facilities.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- March 11, 2003



COW SSIONER M LLER responded that sone of those issues are
bei ng considered now and he believes there would be sone cost
savi ngs, but he could not say how nuch at the present tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested this comittee would be
interested in Comm ssioner MIller's views on that.

COW SSI ONER M LLER reiterated that the conmttee is faced wth
a big policy call.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that HB 158 woul d be held over.

ADJ QURNMENT

Nunmber 2441

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 12 a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -37- March 11, 2003



